

FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL

Going Concern and Financial Reporting

Guidance for directors of listed companies registered in the UK issued in 1994

REPRINT WITHOUT ALTERATION

THE FRC INTENDS TO ISSUE AN EXPOSURE DRAFT PROPOSING AMENDMENTS TO THIS GUIDANCE IN 2009.

Foreword

from the Committee on the Financial Aspects of Corporate Governance ('Cadbury Committee')

The Committee recognises the extent of the task which it set the Working Group on Going Concern in asking it to provide directors of listed companies with the guidance which they needed in order to comply with paragraph 4.6 of the Code of Best Practice. The Committee appreciates the way in which the Working Group has arrived at its conclusions and has drafted them.

The Committee's aim was to clarify where the responsibilities for the financial aspects of corporate governance lay and to provide a framework for reporting on their discharge. The Working Group's guidance furthers that aim and sets out the governance principles which boards of directors should adopt in the matter of going concern.

Establishing governance standards and developing them through examples of good practice is a continuing process to which this report has made an important contribution. Although it is addressed in the first instance to listed companies in support of their statements of compliance, the guidance proposed by the Working Group clarifies the concept of going concern to the benefit of businesses of all kinds.

CONTENTS

		Paragraph
Prefa	ce	1 – 4
Introc	luction	
	Objectives	5 - 6
	Scope	7 - 8
	Accounting concepts	9 - 11
	Definition of going concern	12 - 15
	Foreseeable future	16 - 20
	Use of going concern basis	21 - 22
	Insolvency	23
Proce	edures	
	General	24 - 27
	Forecasts and budgets	28 - 29
	Borrowing requirements	30 - 32
	Liability management	33
	Contingent liabilities	34
	Products and markets	35 - 36
	Financial risk management	37
	Other factors	38 - 39
	Financial adaptability	40
	Assessment of factors	41 - 42
Discl	osure by directors	
	Location of disclosure	43 - 46
	Content of disclosure	47
	Going concern presumption appropriate	48 - 49
	Going concern basis used despite doubts	
	on going concern presumption	50 – 51
	Going concern basis not appropriate	52 - 54
Other	issues	
	Application to groups of companies	55
	Relevant date for disclosure	56
	Interim reporting	57

Appendix

Detailed procedures

Preface

- 1. The Committee on the Financial Aspects of Corporate Governance (the 'Cadbury Committee') recommends in its Code of Best Practice, dated December 1992, that directors should state in their report and accounts that the business is a going concern, with supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary (paragraph 4.6 of the Code) and that the auditors should report on this statement (paragraph 5.22 of the Report).
- 2. This recommendation is intended to ensure that directors satisfy themselves explicitly that it is reasonable for them to presume that the company is a going concern in drawing up the financial statements. It is not intended to, and indeed cannot, guarantee that a company will remain a going concern until the next report and accounts are issued.
- 3. This document sets out guidance to help directors in complying with this recommendation. The Code of Best Practice applies in respect of years ending after 30 June 1993. Note 13 to the Code notes that companies will not be able to comply with paragraph 4.6 until the necessary guidance for companies becomes available. With the publication of this guidance, directors are enabled to make the statement recommended by the Cadbury Committee, and they are encouraged to do so as soon as they are able.
- 4. An explicit statement on the appropriateness of the going concern presumption in financial statements is a new departure. Consequently, there has been little experience of the practical implications and a consensus as to the details of best practice will emerge as experience is gained. This guidance, therefore-aims to give the broad principles which directors should consider in complying with the recommendation of the Code of Best Practice on going concern. An appendix sets out examples of detailed procedures which may be appropriate, but these are illustrative rather than prescriptive.

Introduction

Objectives

- 5. The purposes of this document are:
 - to explain the significance of going concern in relation to the financial statements;
 - to describe the procedures that an explicit statement may entail; and
 - to recommend appropriate disclosure.
- 6. The directors of listed companies already follow many procedures that are relevant in determining that the going concern presumption is appropriate in drawing up the financial statements. Because these recommendations are intended to codify best practice for directors, it is not expected that there should be any substantial increase in the amount of work that is necessary.

Scope

- 7. The Cadbury Report is directed to all listed companies registered in the UK. This includes companies which are registered on the USM. The London Stock Exchange has amended the continuing obligations imposed on companies to require a statement from the directors regarding the extent of their compliance with the Code of Best Practice.
- 8. This guidance-may also be of assistance to all directors in discharging their obligations under the Companies Act 1985 to prepare financial statements using the going concern basis. In particular, the directors of large private companies and 'public interest' companies may wish to adopt appropriate procedures in order to comply with best practice.

Accounting concepts

- 9. In examining and reporting on the appropriateness of the going concern presumption, it is important that directors should be aware of the significance attached to the technical meaning of some of the terms used in connection with financial statements.
- 10. Financial statements in the UK are drawn up under a framework of generally accepted accounting practices. A distinction is made between fundamental accounting concepts, accounting bases and accounting policies. Fundamental accounting concepts are the broad basic assumptions which underlie the way in which financial statements are drawn up. In contrast, accounting bases are the

methods which have been developed for expressing or applying the fundamental accounting concepts to particular financial transactions and items. Where there are several acceptable accounting bases, a company can choose the particular treatment (known as an 'accounting policy') which is the best to present fairly its results and financial position. It generally has no choice in the fundamental accounting concepts to which it should conform.

11. The going concern concept is a fundamental accounting concept and, as such, underlies the financial statements. The Companies Act 1985 also requires that 'the company shall be presumed to be carrying on business as a going concern' (paragraph 10 to Schedule 4).

Definition of going concern

- 12. The Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 2 'Disclosure of accounting policies' (SSAP 2) defines the fundamental accounting concept 'going concern' as meaning that the enterprise will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
- 13. The going concern basis is therefore unlikely to be compatible with the intention or the necessity to:
 - enter into a scheme of arrangement with the company's creditors;
 - make an application for an administration order;
 - place the company into administrative receivership or liquidation.
- 14. In recent years it has become commonplace for companies to be restructured. Some companies regard this as an ongoing process since they need to adapt to changing markets if they are to continue to be successful. It is generally accepted that such major restructuring does not adversely affect the suitability of the going concern basis for drawing up the financial statements.
- 15. The generally recognised alternative to the going concern basis is to assume that the company will be broken up. This may significantly diminish the value of assets previously reported in the balance sheet since it assumes that the assets will be subject to a forced sale and not realised in the normal course of business.

Foreseeable future

16. SSAP 2 uses the term 'foreseeable future' without further elaboration. Neither the Companies Act 1985 nor accounting standards expand on that term in the context of going concern. However, for practical purposes some guidance is felt to be helpful.

- 17. Any consideration involving the foreseeable future involves making a judgment, at a particular point in time, about future events which are inherently uncertain. The following should be noted.
 - (a) In general terms, the degree of uncertainty increases significantly the further into the future the consideration is taken. The manner in which the uncertainty increases with time depends on the circumstances of each particular company.
 - (b) The judgment is valid only at the time at which it is given. Subsequent events can overturn a judgment which was reasonable at the time at which it was made.
- 18. Accordingly, the foreseeable future depends on the specific circumstances at a point in time, including the nature of the company's business, its associated risks and external influences.
- 19. As a consequence, it is not possible to give any certainty in relation to going concern. Any judgment made, whilst reasonable at the time, can be valid only at that time and can be overturned by subsequent events.
- 20. In assessing going concern, directors should take account of all information of which they are aware at the time. It is not possible to specify a minimum period to which they should pay particular attention in assessing going concern. It is recognised that any such period is artificial and arbitrary; in reality there is no 'cut off point' after which there should be a sudden change in the approach adopted. Where the period considered by the directors has been limited, for example, to a period of less than one year from the date of approval of the financial statements, the directors should determine whether, in their opinion, the financial statements require any additional disclosure to explain adequately the assumptions that underlie the adoption of the going concern basis.

Use of going concern basis

- 21. Because going concern is a fundamental accounting concept, the directors usually prepare financial statements on the going concern basis; the alternative 'break-up' basis is very unusual. Thus the directors may have identified factors which cast doubt on the presumption that the company will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future but such doubts are most unlikely to make an alternative basis appropriate. In such cases, additional disclosure is appropriate.
- 22. Where such matters impact on the truth and fairness of the view given by the financial statements, then disclosure will be required in a note to the financial

statements. Where it does not impact, then disclosure in the Operating and Financial Review ('OFR') will be sufficient.

Insolvency

23. Doubts on the ability of a company to remain as a going concern do not necessarily mean that the company is or is likely to become insolvent. The solvency of a company is determined by reference to a comparison of its assets and liabilities and by its ability to meet liabilities as they fall due. Nevertheless, if doubts relating to going concern are disclosed, there may be an adverse effect on public perception of the company's position. Where the directors are unable to state that the going concern basis is appropriate, they should consider taking professional advice.

Procedures

General

- 24. There are many factors which are relevant to the directors in considering whether the company will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and hence as a going concern. Some are within, some outside, their control. The directors will need to consider these factors when they prepare budgets and forecasts. Work in support of their going concern statement can thus be integrated with other procedures that are carried out.
- 25. Directors are best placed to know which factors are likely to be of greater significance in relation to their company. These factors will vary by industry and from company to company within a particular industry. For example, one company may have significant economic dependence on a particular customer, whilst another company may have a large number of customers. The relative significance of factors can also vary over time.
- 26. Some major areas in which procedures are likely to be appropriate are set out below. They may contain some matters which the directors consider do not apply to their company. They should, however, be given some consideration to see whether they could become significant.
- 27. The categories set out below are not exhaustive but indicate the main types of procedures relevant to considering going concern. The use of such categories is a matter of convenience, since in practice points are often inter-related. More detailed procedures are included in the Appendix.

Forecasts and budgets

- 28. Forecasting and budgeting are long-established techniques in management accounting. When the critical assumptions are challenged and tested, the refined forecasts and budgets can become powerful predictive techniques.
- 29. Budgets and forecasts should be prepared to cover the period to the next balance sheet date as a minimum. They may be prepared on a rolling basis for at least twelve months ahead. Further periods are generally covered by medium or long term plans which give an indication in general terms of how the directors expect the business of the company to fare.

Borrowing requirements

- 30. The facilities available to the company should be reviewed and compared to the detailed cash flow forecasts for the period to the next balance sheet date, as a minimum. Sensitivity analyses on the critical assumptions should also be used in the comparison. The directors should seek to ensure that there are no anticipated:
 - shortfalls in facilities against requirements;
 - arrears of interest; or
 - breaches of covenants.
- 31. The directors have responsibility to manage borrowing requirements actively. Any potential deficits, arrears or breaches should be discussed with the company's bankers in order to determine whether any action is appropriate. This may prevent potential problems crystallising. The onus is on the directors to be satisfied that there are likely to be appropriate and committed financing arrangements in place.
- 32. The directors may seek confirmation from their bankers regarding the existence and status of any finance arrangements which the company has entered into.

Liability management

33. Directors should ensure that the financial plans indicate adequate matching of projected cash inflows with known cash outflows. The outflows should include all known liabilities, such as loan repayments, payment of tax liabilities and other commitments which may be recorded off-balance sheet.

Contingent liabilities

34. Directors should consider the company's exposure to contingent liabilities. Not only should the directors consider contingent liabilities experienced by the company in the past such as legal proceedings, guarantees and product liability, but they should also consider whether there are any new contingencies such as environmental clean-up costs.

Products and markets

- 35. Directors should have information about the major aspects of the economic environment within which the company operates. They should consider the size of the market, its strength, their market share and assess whether there are any economic, political or other factors which may cause the market to change. This should be done for each of the main product markets.
- 36. Directors should ensure that their products are compatible with their market projections in terms of market position, quality and expected life.

Financial risk management

37. There are many types of financial risk facing a company and directors should identify which risks are most significant to their company. For example, the exposure to fixed price contracts and to movements in foreign currency rates may be the most significant risks for a construction company exporting overseas. The directors should consider how such risks could affect the company and decide how best to manage these.

Other factors

- 38. There are many other factors which could affect the ability of a company to continue in operational existence. Directors should consider how sensitive the company has been to particular past events; they can use this information to assess the likely effect of any potential recurrence of such events.
- 39. Although knowledge of the past is helpful, it cannot be used in isolation to predict the sensitivity of the company to future events. The directors should use their understanding of the company, its resources and the state of the markets in which it operates to determine the key factors which could affect the company's future.

Financial adaptability

40. Financial adaptability is the ability to alter the amounts and timing of cash flows to respond to unexpected needs or opportunities. As such, it can mitigate any of the factors above.

Assessment Factors

- 41. When directors have undertaken all the individual procedures they consider appropriate, they should consider the range of potential outcomes in the context of the probability of occurrence to determine the likely commercial outcomes. They should also be aware of the implications arising from interaction between the various factors.
- 42. If the directors become aware of factors that cast doubt on the ability of the company to continue in operational existence, then they will need to carry out more detailed investigations to determine how the company can be best placed to overcome any such problems. Such work will provide evidence in support of their statement on going concern and additional disclosure in their statement may be appropriate.

Disclosure by Directors

Location of disclosure

- 43. Directors should include their statement on going concern in the Operating and Financial Review.
- 44. The OFR incorporates a significant amount of discussion and analysis which will help to put the statement on going concern in context. Directors should be aware, however, that the OFR is a review relating primarily to past operations and will not necessarily contain sufficient disclosure for going concern purposes. To the extent that they see new factors arising or likely to arise in the future or changes to historical factors discussed in the OFR, they will need to consider making appropriate additional disclosure in the OFR to support their going concern statement.
- 45. Directors should also be aware of the need to consider whether there needs to be a specific cross-reference between the going concern statement in the OFR and the accounting policy note in the financial statements. If there are doubts as to the appropriateness of the going concern presumption then the financial statements

- may need to reflect any relevant factors in greater detail if they are to show a true and fair view.
- 46. The directors' going concern disclosure will form a part, albeit a significant one, of the indications about the future of the company that are being conveyed by the annual report and accounts.

Content of disclosure

- 47. When directors have weighed up the results of the procedures they have undertaken, there are three basic conclusions they can reach:
 - they have a reasonable expectation that the company will continue in operational existence tor the foreseeable future and have therefore used the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements;
 - they have identified factors which cast doubt on the ability of the company to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future but they consider that it is appropriate to use the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements;
 - they consider that the company is unlikely to continue in operational existence
 for the foreseeable future and therefore the going concern basis is not an
 appropriate one on which to draw up the financial statements.

Going concern presumption appropriate

- 48. In many cases, the detailed budgets will indicate that the position of the company will be satisfactory for the period covered by those budgets and the longer-term plans of the company will contain no indications to suggest the company may cease to continue in operational existence. In such cases, the additional work needed by the directors to support their going concern statement should be relatively small, since the nature of the work will be a drawing together and formal documentation of existing work and evidence.
- 49. When the directors have been able to satisfy themselves that the going concern presumption is appropriate, they should make a basic statement to that effect. A suggested example of the basic disclosure is as follows:

'After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts.'

Going concern basis used despite doubts on going concern presumption

- 50. In most cases, directors will need to draw up financial statements on the going concern basis. When there are factors which, in the event of an unfavourable outcome, cast doubt on the appropriateness of the going concern presumption, the directors will need to perform more detailed work to determine the extent of the problem and the company's ability to respond to it. In making their statement on going concern, the directors should explain the circumstances so as to identify the factors which give rise to the problems (including any external factors outside their control which may affect the outcome) and an explanation of how they intend to deal with the problem so as to resolve it.
- As an example, the disclosure for a company where there is a breach of covenants and negotiations are continuing might be along the following lines:

'The company is in breach of certain loan covenants at its balance sheet date and so the company's bankers could recall their loans at any time. The directors continue to be involved in negotiations with the company's bankers and as yet no demands for repayments have been received. The negotiations are at an early stage and, although the directors are optimistic about the outcome, it is as yet too early to make predictions with any certainty.

In the light of the actions described elsewhere in the Operating and Financial Review, the directors consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts.'

Going concern basis not appropriate

- 52. Where, as a result of the procedures that they have undertaken, the directors consider the company is unlikely to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, they should no longer prepare the financial statements using the going concern assumption, and an alternative basis will have to be used.
- 53. The directors will need to state that, in their opinion, the company is no longer a going concern; they should, however consider taking legal advice on the wording of their statement.
- 54. Where the company is not a going concern, the company is not necessarily insolvent. The directors should, however, consider whether the company may be or become insolvent or whether section 214 of the Insolvency Act 1986 applies. This section states that an action for wrongful trading may be brought against a director if at some time before the commencement of the winding up of the company he knew or ought to have concluded that there was no reasonable prospect that the company would avoid going into insolvent liquidation.

Other issues

Application to groups of companies

55. The directors of a parent company preparing group financial statements should make their statement regarding going concern in respect of both the parent company and the group as a whole. A statement in relation to the group does not imply that each of the companies within the group is a going concern.

Relevant date for disclosure

56. The statement by the directors should be made in accordance with what is known to them at the date on which they approve the financial statements; in practice directors will need to perform their work to a date before the approval of the financial statements and update their work as appropriate.

Interim reporting

57. Listed companies are required to publish interim results. Directors cannot be expected to consider going concern as fully at the interim, but they should undertake a review of their previous work. They should look at the position at the previous year end to see whether any of the significant factors which they had identified at that time have changed in the interim to such an extent as to affect the appropriateness of the going concern presumption. More detailed consideration is being given to interim reporting by other parties.

Appendix

Detailed Procedures

This appendix sets out a list of detailed procedures which may be helpful to directors, particularly of smaller listed companies, in determining the appropriateness of the going concern basis in drawing up the accounts. It is not intended to be used as a checklist, since there may be other procedures, not detailed below, which are relevant for a particular company and, conversely, not all the procedures will be appropriate for every company.

1. Forecasts and Budgets

- 1.1 Directors may prepare monthly cash flow forecasts and monthly budgets covering, as a minimum, the period up to the next balance sheet date.
- 1.2 Directors may prepare a detailed list of assumptions (including macro-economic assumptions) which underlie the forecasts. In relation to these assumptions, the directors may confirm that:
 - attainable gross profits are realistic and consistent with past performance, the existing and anticipated pricing structure and order book;
 - sales mix and yield are realistic;
 - the patterns of debtor collections are realistic and consistent with current debtor collections;
 - stock holding and work in progress levels and usage are realistic and realisable;
 - working capital requirements are realistic and based on past performance;
 - the basis of payment terms with existing creditors is attainable and realistic in the light of existing liabilities and credit facilities available; and
 - overhead levels are realistic in the light of past performance.
- 1.3 Directors may consider which assumptions are critical to their business; all critical assumptions may be noted and subjected to sensitivity analysis.
- 1.4 Directors may consider whether the forecasts take adequate account of capital asset replacement programmes.
- 1.5 Directors may consider whether the forecasts adequately provide for escalating costs (eg due to inflation or contractual terms).

- 1.6 Directors may ensure that seasonal fluctuations are reflected in the forecasts; in particular that any necessary stock build-ups (for example of Christmas stock) are adequately provided for.
- 1.7 Directors may consider the availability of key resources and how shortages could affect the projected outcomes.
- 1.8 Directors may perform sensitivity analyses on the critical assumptions, particularly in relation to differing levels of activity.
- 1.9 Directors may consider the accuracy of past forecasts over the recent years; any significant variances may be analysed and documented and the directors may consider whether current forecasts need revising to avoid the same tendencies.

2. Borrowing Requirements

- 2.1 Directors may confirm that the covenants on current borrowings are satisfied as at the balance sheet date.
- 2.2 Directors may confirm that there are no arrears of interest on current borrowings as at the balance sheet date. The term 'arrears' does not include accruals but relates to interest past the due date for payment.
- 2.3 Directors may compare monthly forecast cash flow positions with facilities available to ensure that there is no projected deficit (this should assume that all interest payments can be made on the due dates). This may be done for the period to the next balance sheet date. Directors may consider how they could cover any deficit or interest arrears; this could include renegotiating the facilities with the company's bankers.
- 2.4 Directors may perform sensitivity analyses using the worst estimates of key assumptions in the forecasts to ensure that facilities are adequate. Where facilities are inadequate to cover borrowings, the directors may consider how they could cover this as in 2.3 above.
- 2.5 Directors may test budgeted numbers against all existing covenants to ensure that there are no anticipated breaches. This may be done on a monthly basis for the period to the next balance sheet date. If the forecasts do indicate likely breaches, the directors may consider how they could prevent these as in 2.3 above.

2.6 Directors may test for breach of covenant against forecasts prepared on the basis of the worst assumptions; again, they may consider what action to take where the covenants could be breached.

3 Liability Management

- 3.1. Directors may schedule all known liabilities and repayment dates in the future. (This goes beyond the period to the next balance sheet date and is determined by all known liabilities including commitments).
- 3.2 Directors may consider whether there are any periods when large repayments coincide and there are no matching, projected inflows of funds. Particular consideration may be given to high priority cash flows such as excise duties and taxation. Where there are projected outflows unmatched by inflows, directors may consider how the funds will be raised and whether appropriate arrangements can be put in place to meet payments as they fall due.
- 3.3 Directors may take into account any other commitments, which may be off-balance sheet (for example operating lease commitments and forward exchange contracts), when assessing the profile of loan repayments.
- 3.4 Directors may calculate those financial ratios appropriate to the company's business, for example the gearing ratio and interest cover. Historical trends in these ratios should be noted and budgets should be used to assess how these are likely to change to the extent not covered by the work on covenants above.
- 3.5 Directors may consider whether the company places undue reliance on overdue suppliers' accounts and whether other creditors (such as VAT, PAYE and NI) are overdue. In this context, directors may calculate creditor days on a monthly basis for the past year to determine historical trends and to ensure that there is no evidence of deterioration. Figures for creditor days may be compared to stated credit terms and industry averages. Any restrictions placed by suppliers on usual trade terms may be investigated. This analysis may also be performed using the forecast information.
- 3.6 Directors may consider the extent of the company's reliance on a limited number of suppliers. They may consider whether there are agreements with key suppliers and what plans have been made to ensure continuity of supply.

4. Contingent Liabilities

- 4.1 Directors may consider the exposure of the company to contingent liabilities, in particular those arising through:
 - legal proceedings;
 - guarantees and/ or warranties;
 - product liability not covered by insurance; and
 - retentions.
- 4.2 Where the company has been in receipt of grants for revenue or capital expenditure and there are conditions attaching to those grants, the directors may consider whether there has been or is likely to be a breach of conditions such that a repayment is or will be due.
- 4.3 Directors may consider whether the company has a current or potential liability for environmental 'clean-up' costs.
- 4.4 Directors may consider any potential exposure for decommissioning costs.
- 4.5 Directors may consider the extent and potential effect of any intra-group guarantees, for example unlimited multi-lateral guarantees.

5. Products and Markets

- 5.1 For each of the main product markets, directors may consider the size of the market and its strength and assess whether there are any economic, political or other factors which may cause the market to change.
- 5.2 Directors may consider the position of the company's products in its markets and how these have changed over time and are likely to change in the foreseeable future.
- 5.3 Directors may review whether the quality of the products is consistent with the projected demand.
- 5.4 Directors may determine whether the products will become obsolete quickly and, if so, that stock controls are adequate to minimise wastage whilst avoiding stockouts.
- 5.5 Directors may consider whether there is adequate but not excessive product and allied research and technical development and whether this will be maintained at an appropriate level in the foreseeable future.

- 5.6 Directors may consider the adequacy of their marketing strategy to secure future market shares as projected in forecasts.
- 5.7 Directors may consider the adequacy of their costing systems. In particular, they may review the accuracy of costing, how frequently the costs are updated and the extent to which product contributions are used. This can also provide the directors with comfort on forecast profit margins.
- 5.8 Directors may review the bases for overhead allocations and how frequently these are updated. The performance measurement of profit centres and cost centres may be reviewed and acted upon in order to maintain the performance of the business as a whole.
- 5.9 Directors may consider the mix of customers and whether the company's turnover is dependent on too limited a number. Directors may' evaluate the risk of losing these customers, for example by reviewing the customers themselves, their activities and whether these are changing. Directors may also consider the likelihood of finding alternative sales markets where there appears to be a high risk of losing their existing customers.
- 5.10 Directors may review the dependence of the company on intra-group trading. In particular, directors may consider whether transactions have been made at arm's length and whether management charges are for value.

6. Financial Risk Management

- 6.1 Directors may consider their current and anticipated approaches to managing risk arising through adverse movements in interest rates. Where assumptions about interest rates critically affect the projected future position of the company, sensitivity analyses may be performed.
- 6.2 Directors may consider their current and anticipated approaches to managing risk arising through adverse movements in foreign currency exchange rates.

 Where assumptions about foreign currency exchange rates critically affect the projected future position of the company, sensitivity analyses may be performed.
- 6.3 Directors may consider their current and anticipated exposures to risk through major fixed price or fixed rate contracts. Past and projected costs on such contracts may be regularly reviewed.

7. Other Factors

- 7.1 Other factors which directors may take into account when determining the appropriateness of the going concern presumption include:
 - consistency of earnings;
 - stability of cost base;
 - recurring operating losses;
 - alternating operating profits and losses in subsequent years;
 - arrears of dividends;
 - current dividends being paid out of retained rather than current earnings;
 - non-compliance with statutory capital requirements;
 - work stoppages or other labour difficulties;
 - loss of key management or staff (directors may consider how easily they could be replaced);
 - loss of a key patent or franchise;
 - high levels of stock which may include obsolete stock;
 - long overdue debtors;
 - potential losses on long-term contracts;
 - continuing use of old fixed assets because there are no funds to replace them (potentially identified through any of the following: increased maintenance costs, increased down-time or problems with quality control); and
 - adequacy of the company's insurance policies.
- 7.2 Directors may consider whether there are signs that the company is overtrading.

8. Financial Adaptability

- 8.1 Financial adaptability is defined by the Accounting Standards Board as the ability of a company to take effective action to alter the amounts and timing of cash flows so that it can respond to unexpected needs or opportunities.
- 8.2 Financial adaptability mitigates the factors above in considering the appropriateness of the going concern presumption in relation to the company.
- 8.3 In determining the financial adaptability of a company, the directors may consider the ability of the company to:
 - dispose of assets or to postpone the replacement of assets without significantly affecting cash flows;
 - lease assets rather than to purchase outright;
 - obtain new sources of finance;

- renew or extend loans;
- restructure debts;
- raise additional share capital;
- obtain financial support from other group companies; and
- continue business by making limited reductions in the level of operations or by making use of alternative resources.





FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL
5TH FLOOR
ALDWYCH HOUSE
71-91 ALDWYCH
LONDON WC2B 4HN

TEL: +44 (0)20 7492 2300 FAX: +44 (0)20 7492 2301 Website: www.frc.org.uk